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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Directors of
Jewish National Fund of Canada
(Keren Kayemeth Le'Israel) Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jewish National Fund of Canada (Keren
Kayemeth Le'lsrael) Inc., which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017,
and the statements of changes in net assets, revenues and expenses and cash flows for the year then:
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, ;

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedurss selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant fo the
organization's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the organization's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (cont'd.)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Jewish National Fund of Canada (Keren Kayemeth Le’lsrael) Inc. derives revenue from contributions,
the completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, our verification
of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the organization and we were not
able to determine whether adjustments might be necessary to receipts from contributions, excess of
revenues over expenses for the year, assets and net assets.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of adjustments, if any, which we might have determined to be
necessary had the receipts from confributions referred to in the basis for qualified opinion been
susceptible to satisfactory audit tests, these financial statements present fairly, in 2ll material respects, the
financial position of the organization as at December 31, 2017 and the changes in net assets, revenues
and expenses, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit crganizations.
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
ASSETS
Current
Cash $§ 11,228,507 $ 8,205,288
Investments held by third party (Note 3) 9,310,894 8,316,690
State of Israel bonds (Note 4) 80,710 59,930
Sales tax receivable 272,225 303,278
Loan receivable (Note 5) 1,003,461 2,231,568
Prepaid expenses and sundry assets 212,483 58,333
Current portion of balance of sale receivable (Note 8) 816,625 792,904
22,924,905 19,965,992
Life insurance policies (Note 6) 264,016 260,311
Loan receivable (Note 7) 280,000 280,000
Balance of sale receivable (Note 8) 2,599,771 3,416,396
Investments in real estate (Note 9) 10,176,000 10,981,500
Property and equipment (Note 10) 106,656 123,444
Intangible assets (net of accumuiated amortization of $338,859; ,
2016 - $329,833) 53,817 62,844
$ 36405165 $ 35 090,487
LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and sundry liabilities (Note 11) $ 286,348 $ 306,109
Salaries and vacation payable 127,901 301,938
_ 414,249 608,047
Provision for retirement pay 54,655 173.878
468,904 781,925
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 35,936,261 34,308,562

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS:

Member

Member

See accompanying notes

3 36!405!165 $ 35090487
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
Balance, beginning of year . $ 34,308,562 § 22673228 -
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year 1,627,699 11,635,334 .
Balance, end of year $_ 36,936,261 $ 34,308,562

See acconjpifzyr'ng notes O O O O @ 4



JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
Revenues
Receipts from contributions $ 12,619,114 § 28,835706
Investment Income, including increase in fair value of investments 858,727 225,477
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies 3,705 3,732
Interest income from balance of sale receivable (Note 8) 115,795 -
Receipt from life insurance policy 200,000 -
13,797,341 29,084,915
Fundraising expenses (Note 12) 3,462,823 3,402,863
Excess of revenues over fundraising expenses 10,334,518 25.662,052
Expenses ‘
General and administrative 2,076,072 2,954,551
Amortization 32,693 38,914
2,108,765 2,993 465
Excess of revenues over expenses before undernoted items 8,225,753 22,668,587
Charitable activities 5,701,573 11,033,253
Impairment of investments in real esiate 896,481 -
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year $ 1627699 5 11635334

See accompanying notes
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
Operating activities
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year $ 1,627,699 S 11635334
Adjustments for
Amortization 32,693 38,914
(Increase) decrease in fair value of investments (208,653) 326,741
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies (3,705) (3,732)
Impairment of investments in real estate 896,481 -
2,344,515 11,997,257
Net change in non-cash working capital items ‘
Decrease (increase) in sales tax receivable 31,054 (39,211)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and sundyy assets {156,150) 8,099
(Decrease) increase in accounts payabie and sundry liabilities {19,761) 16,154
{Decrease) increase in salaries and vacation payable (174,037) 114,021
Decrease in provision for retirement pay ~(119,223) (208,942)
Cash provided by operating activities 1,906,598 11.886,378
Investing activities
(Increase) decrease in State of |srael bonds (20,780) 2,536
Increase in investments in real estate (90,981) -
Proceeds from sale of investments in real estate - 460,000
Increase in investments held by third party (785,551) (573,444)
Decrease (increase) in balance of sale receivable 792,904 (4,209,300)
Increase in life insurance policies - (93,692)
Purchase of property and equipment (6,878) (8,865)
Increase in loan receivable (1,771,893) (1,617,662)
Repayment of loan receivable 3,000,000 1,353
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,116,821 {6,039,074)
Increase in cash 3,023,219 5,847,304
Cash, beginning of year 8,205,288 2,357,984
Cash, end of year $ 11,228,507 $ 8,205,288

See accompanying nofes
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

1 Purpose of the organization

Jewish National Fund of Canada (Keren Kayemeth Le'lsrael) Inc. raises funds from various .
Canadian sources. These funds are used for charitable purposes in Israel through various
agency arrangements with the organization. The organization is incorporated under the Canada
Not-for-profit Corporations Act (NFP Act) and is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act.

2. Significant accounting policies

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations in Part lll of the CICA Handbook and include the following significant -
accounting policies:

- (a) Measurement uncertainty

(b)

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabiiities, disclosures of contingent liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reported period. These estimates are reviewed periodically, and as adjustments -
become necessary they are reported in the excess of revenues over expenses in the period
in which they become known.

Estimates made by management include the impairment of [oan receivable and balance of
sale receivable, useful life of property and equipment, salary and vacation payable accruals,
provision for retirement pay, the allocation of salaries and compensation costs, and the
valuation of investments in real estate. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates.

Financial instruments
(iy Measurement of financial instruments

The organization initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value. Subsequent thereto, its financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost, except for its investments held by third party, State of Israel bonds, and
cash surrender value of life insurance policies, which are subsequently measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognized in the excess of revenues over expenses for
the year.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash, sales tax recewahle loan
receivable and balance of sale receivable.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and sundry
liabilities, salaries and vacation payable, and provision for retirement pay.
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

- 5 Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

(b) Financial instruments (cont'd.)

(c)

(d)

(i) Impairment

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are
indicators of possible impairment. The amount of the write-down is recognized in the
excess of revenues over expenses for the year. The previously recognized impairment
loss may be reversed to the extent of the improvement, directly or by adjusting the
allowance account, provided it is no greater than the amount that would have been
reported at the date of the reversal had the impairment not been recognized previously.
The amount of the reversal is recognized in the excess of revenues over expenses for
the year.

Revenue recognition

The organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted
contributions are recognized as revenue in the vear in which the reiated expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted caontributions are recognized as revenue when reéceived, Pledges are
recognhized as revenue when collectability is reasonably assured. Bequests are recognized
as revenue when assets donated can be reasonably identified and measured. Gifts in kind in
the form of investmeants and life insurance policies are recognized as revenue when assets
donated can be reasonahly identified and measured.

Balance of sale receivable

Balance of sale receivable is recorded at the face amount of the contract less any
impairment.

Interest income is recorded when coflectibility is assured. The balance of sale receivable is

- impaired when in the opinion of management there is a reasonable doubt as to the ultimate

(e)

collectibility of any principal or interest,
Investments in real estate
The organization follows the cost method of accounting for real estate. Any costs incurred to

maintain or improve the properties have been added to the cost. These assets are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an impairment might exist.
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

®

@

(h)

Property and eguipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and are being amortized over their estimated
useful lives, The annual amortization rates and methods are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures ' ‘ 20% declining balance
Data processing equipment 20% declining balance

Amortization of leasehold improvements is recorded over the remaining term of the lease,
The average term of the leases is 5 years,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at ¢ost and are being amortized over their estimated useful
lives. The annual amortization rate and methed is as follows:

Software 20% declining balance
Allocation of expenses
Compensation costs that are directly attributable to fundraising activities are allocated to

fundraising expenses. The amount of compensation costs allocated is based on the time
spent by the employees on fundraising actvities.

3. Investments held by third party

These investments are held and administered by the Jewish Community Foundation of Montréal,

4, State of Israel bonds

State of Israel bonds have been adjusted to fair market value. The bonds mature at various dates
from January 2018 to June 2023 and bear interest at an average rate of approximately 4.42%
(2016 - 2.93%) per annum. Approximately $6,500 (U.S. $6,300) (2016 - $6,500 (U.S. $6, 300)) of
State of Israel Bonds are denominated in U.S. currency.

- Loan receivable

The loan receivable is non-interest bearing.
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

6. Life insurance policies

The amount includes insurance policies having 2 cash surrender value of $170,000 (2016 -
$167,000) net of loans to finance premiums. The face value of all the insurance policies, net of
outstanding loans of approximately $99,000 (2016 - $92,000), is $1,986,000 (2016 - $2,202,000).

7. Loan receivable
This loan receivable is from a 24(1) and was advanced as part of his
24(1) It is non-interest bearing and will be repaid from the proceeds of an
insurance policy on his life. The life insurance policy has been assigned to the organization as
security,

8. Balance of s?le receivable

In 2018, a property having 2 value of $8,418,600 was donated to the orgénization and sold in the
same year. The organization provided the buyer a balance of saie subject to a mortgage secured
against the property. ‘

The balance of sale receivable, bears interest at 3% per annum, repayable
in quarterly instaliments of $227,175 combining principal &nd interest,

maturing in December 2021. $ 3,416,396
Less current portion 816,625
Due beyond one year $ 2@99,771

9. Investments in real estate

During the year, the organization became responsible to pay for all the expenses and costs
related to two of the properties. As at year-end, recorded as investments in real estate, are three
properties donated in 2 prior year, of which, one property the donor maintains use thereof for a
time, during which period the donor pays for all expenses and costs related thereto.
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

10.

11

7

13.

14.

Property and equipment
2017 2016
Accumulated
Cost amortization Net Net
Furniture and fixtures $ 568,830 $ 529,677 § 39,153 § 48,303
Data processing
equipment 1,032,808 981,404 51,404 57,208
Leasehold improvements 49,541 33,442 16,099 17,933

$__ 1651479 § 1,544,523 $ 106,656 § 123,444

Accounts payable and sundry liabilities

Included in accounts payable and sundry liabilities are approximately $26,000 (2016 - $29,000) of
payroll deductions.

Fundraising expenses

included in fundraising expenses are allocated salaries and other compensation costs of
$1,133,000 (2016 - $1,036,000).

Subsequent event

Subsequent to the year end, the organization entered into an agreement to sell one of its

investments in real estate in June 2018 for a total consideration of $4,400,000 before any selling
costs.

Income taxes

The organization is classified as tax-exempt under Federal and Provincial income tax laws.
Consequently, no provision for income taxes has been reflected in the accompanying financial
statements.

24(1)
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

15. Commitments

The minimum rentals payable under long-term operating leases, exclusive of certain operating
costs for which the organization is responsible, are approximately as follows:

2018 $ © 125,000
2019 109,000
2020 103,000
2021 74,000
2022 . 40,000
Subsequent years, 147,000

§__ 598,000

18. Financial instruments

Interest rate risk

The organization is exposed to changes in interest rates, which could adversely impact expected
returns from the organization's investments held by third party and State of Israel bonds.,

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the polential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The
organization is exposed to credil risk as a resuit of iis balance of sale receivable.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices. The organization is exposed to market risk as a resuit of its
investments held by third party and State of Israel bonds,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Directors of
Jewish National Fund of Canada
(Keren Kayemeth Le'lsrael) Inc.

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Jewish National Fund of Canada (Keren Kayemeth
Le'lsrael) Inc., which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the

statements of changes in net assets, revenues and expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, inciuding a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our repart, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Jewish National Fund of Canada (Keren Kayemeth Le'lsrael) Inc. as at December
31, 2018 and the resulis of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The organization's activities in its jointly controlled cperations is shown in the financial statement as
charitable activities - jointly controlled operations. As the jointly controlied operations commenced on June
1, 2018, audited financial information was not available and accordingly, we were unable to determine
whether any adjustments were necessary in respect of the organization's share of assets and liabilities
that it controls or its share of revenue and expenses incurred by the jointly controlled operations and the
elements making up the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement.

In common with many not-for-profit organizations, the organization derives revenue from certain
contributions the completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly,
our verification of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the organization
and we were not able to determine whether adjustments might be necessary to receipts from
contributions, excess of revenues over expenses for the year, assets and net assets.

24(1)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the organization in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal

control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organization's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the organization or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audii of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with

Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

24(1)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the organization's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the organization to cease to
continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements; including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

24(1)
Montréal, Québec
24(1)
24(1)
24(1)
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
ASSETS
Current
Cash $ 5,696,196 § 11,228,507
Investments held by third parties (Note 3) 13,917,953 9,310,894
State of Israel bonds (Note 4) 76,782 80,710
Accounts receivable (Note 5) 555,925 272,225
Loan receivable - 1,003,461
Prepaid expenses and sundry assets 29,802 212,483
Current portion of balance of sale receivable (Note 8) 841,060 816,625
21,117,718 22,924,905
Life insurance policies (Note 6) 267,402 264,016
Loan receivable (Note 7) 280,000 280,000
Balance of sale receivable (Note 8) 1,758,711 2,599,771
Investments in real estate (Note 9) 6,430,219 10,176,000
Property and equipment (Note 10) 99,669 106,656
Intangible assets (net of accumulated arnortization of $349,623;
2017 - $338,859) 43,054 53,817
$ 29,996,773 $ 36,405,165
LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and sundry liabilities (Note 11) $ 113,648 $ 286,348
Salaries and vacation payable 160,722 182,556
274,370 468,904
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 29,722,403 35,936,261
$ 29,996,773 $ 36,405,165

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS:

Member

Member

See accompanying notes
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
Balance, beginning of year $ 35936,261 $§ 34,308,562
(Deficiency) excess of revenues over expenses for the year after
charitable activities (6,213,858) 1,627,699
Balance, end of year $ 29,722,403 $ 35,936,261

See accompanying notes




JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
Revenues
Receipts from contributions $ 11,562,343 $ 12,619,114
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies 3,386 3,705
Investment income 1,183,000 650,074
Interest income from balance of sale receivable (Note 8) 92,074 115,795
Receipt from life insurance policy - 200,000
12,840,803 13,588,688
Fundraising expenses (Note 12) 3,073,156 3,462,823
Excess of revenues over fundraising expenses 9,767,647 10,125,865
Expenses
General and administrative 3,569,306 2,076,072
Amortization 31,925 32,693
3,601,231 2,108,765
Excess of revenues over expenses before undernoted items 6,166,416 8,017,100
Loss on disposition of investments in real estate (35,808) -
Recovery of (impairment) of investments in real estate 229,237 (896,481)
Loan receivable adjustment related to shared expenses (516,949) -
Unrealized (loss) gain on fair value adjustment of investments held
by third party (1,447,343) 208,653
Excess of revenues over expenses before charitable activities 4,395,553 7,329,272
Charitable activities - jointly controlled operations (Note 13) 6,601,722 5,193,163
Charitable activities 4,007,689 508,410

(Deficiency) excess of revenues over expenses for the year after
charitable activities $ (6,213,858)% 1,627,699

See accompanying notes
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
Operating activities
(Deficiency) excess of revenues over expenses for the year $ (6,213,858)% 1,627,699
Adjustments for
Amortization 31,925 32,693
Decrease (increase) in fair value of investments held by third
parties 1,447,343 (208,653)
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies (3,386) (3,705)
(Reversal of) impairment of investments in real estate (229,237) 896,481
Loss on disposition of investments in real estate 35,808 -
Loan receivable adjustment related to shared expenses 516,949 -
(4,414,456) 2,344,515
Net change in non-cash working capital items
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (283,700) 31,054
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and sundry assets 182,681 (156,150)
Decrease in accounts payable and sundry liabilities (172,699) (19,760)
Decrease in salaries and vacation payable (21,834) (293,261)
Cash (used in) provided by operating activities (4,710,008) 1,906,398
Investing activities
Decrease (increase) in State of Israei bonds 3,928 (20,780)
Increase in investments in real estate (248,982) (90,981)
Net proceeds from sale of investments.in real estate 4,188,192 -
Increase in investments held by third party (6,054,403) (785,551)
Decrease in balance of sale receivable 816,625 792,904
Purchase of property and equipment (14,175) (6,878)
Increase in loan receivable - (1,771,893)
Repayment of loarn receivabie 486,512 3,000,000
Cash (used in) provided by investing activities (822,303) 1,116,821
(Decrease) increase in cash (5,532,311) 3,023,219
Cash, beginning of year 11,228,507 8,205,288
Cash, end of year $ 5696196 $ 11,228,507

See accompanying notes
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

; 9 Purpose of the organization

Jewish National Fund of Canada (Keren Kayemeth Le'lsrael) Inc. raises funds from various
Canadian sources. These funds are used for charitable purposes in Israel through various
arrangements with the organization. The organization is incorporated under the Canada Not-for-
profit Corporations Act (NFP Act) and is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act.

2. Significant accounting policies

The organization follows accounting principles generally accepted in Canada in preparing its
financial statements. The significant accounting policies used are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reported period. These estimates are reviewed periodically, and as adjustments
become necessary they are reported in the excess of revenues over expenses in the period
in which they become known.

Estimates made by management inciude the impairment of loans receivable and balance of
sale receivable, useful life of property and equipment, salary and vacation payable accruals,
provision for retirement pay, the allocation of salaries and compensation costs, and the
valuation of investments in real estate. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Financial instruments
(i) Measurement of financial instruments

The organization initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value. Subsequent thereto, its financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost, except for its investments held by third parties, State of Israel bonds,
and cash surrender value of life insurance policies, which are subsequently measured at
fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in the excess of revenues over
expenses for the year.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash, accounts receivable, loan
receivable and balance of sale receivable.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and sundry
liabilities and salaries and vacation payable.
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Financial instruments (cont'd.)
(i) Impairment

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are
indicators of possible impairment. The amount of the write-down is recognized in the
excess of revenues over expenses for the year. The previously recognized impairment
loss may be reversed to the extent of the improvement, directly or by adjusting the
allowance account, provided it is no. greater than the amount that would have been
reported at the date of the reversal had the impairment not been recognized previously.
The amount of the reversal is recognized in the excess of revenues over expenses for
the year.

Revenue recognition

The organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted
contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the reiated expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received. Pledges are
recognized as revenue when collectability is reasonably assured. Bequests are recognized
as revenue when assets donated can be reasonably identified and measured. Gifts in kind in
the form of investments and life insurance policies are recognized as revenue when assets
donated can be reasonabiy identified and measured.

Balance of sale receivable

Balance of sale receivable is recorded at the face amount of the contract less any
impairment.

Interest income is recorded when collectability is assured. The balance of sale receivable is
impaired when in the opinion of management there is a reasonable doubt as to the ultimate
collectability of any principal or interest.

Investments in real estate

The organization follows the cost method of accounting for real estate. Any costs incurred to

maintain or improve the properties have been added to the cost. These assets are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an impairment might exist.
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018
2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
(f) Property and equipment

(9)

(h)

(i)

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and are being amortized over their estimated
useful lives. The annual amortization rates and methods are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 20% declining balance
Data processing equipment 20% declining balance

Amortization of leasehold improvements is recorded over the remaining term of the lease.
The average term of a lease is five years.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost and are being amortized over their estimated useful
lives. The annual amortization rate and method is as follows:

Software 20% declining balance
Allocation of expenses

Compensation costs that are directly attributabie to fundraising activities are allocated to
fundraising expenses. The amount of compensation costs allocated is based on the time
spent by the employees on fundraising activities.

Jointly controlled operations

The organization conducts jointly controlled operations with Keren Kayemeth Le'lsrael in
Israel. The organization records on the balance sheet its share of assets it controls and its

share of liabilities incurred and on the income statement, its share of revenue earned and its
share of expenses incurred by the joint arrangement.

3. Investments held by third parties

These investments are held and administered by the Jewish Community Foundation of Montréal
and the Jewish Community Foundation of Greater Toronto.

4, State of Israel bonds

State of Israel bonds have been adjusted to fair market value. The bonds mature at various dates
from February 2019 to June 2023 and bear interest at an average rate of approximately 5.10%
(2017 - 4.42%) per annum. Approximately $2,600 (U.S. $2,500) (2017 - $6,500 (U.S. $6,300)) of
State of Israel Bonds are denominated in U.S. currency.

- 10-
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

5. Accounts receivable
2018 2017
Sales taxes receivable $ 255,791 § 272,091
Other receivables 300,134 134
$ 555,925 $ 272,225
6. Life insurance policies

This includes insurance policies having a cash surrender value of $174,000 (2017 - $170,000) net
of loans to finance premiums. The face value of all the insurance policies is $2,000,000 (2017 -
$1,986,000), which is net of outstanding loans of approximately $107,000 (2017 - $99,000).

7. Loan receivable
This loan receivable from a 24(1) was advanced as part of his
24(1) itis non-interest bearing and will be repaid from the proceeds of an insurance

policy on his life. The life insurance policy has been assigned to the organization as security.

8. Balance of sale receivable

In 2016, a property having a value of $8,418,600 was donated to the organization and sold in the
same year. The organization provided the buyer a balance of sale subject to a mortgage secured
against the property.

The balance of sale receivable, bears interest at 3% per annum, repayable
in quarterly installments of $227,175 combining principal and interest,
maturing in December 2021 $ 2,599,771

Less current portion 841.060

Due beyond one year $ 1,758,711

9. Investments in real estate

The organization is responsible to pay for all the expenses and costs related to its properties.
Costs of $314,745 (2017 - $90,981) were capitalized during the year.

- 11-
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Property and equipment

2018 2017
Accumulated

Cost amortization Net Net

Furniture and fixtures $ 568,830 $ 537,507 $ 31,323 § 39,153
Data processing

equipment 1,046,983 693,103 53,880 51,404
Leasehold improvements 49,541 35,075 14,466 16,099
$ 1665354 $ 1,565,685 $ 99,669 3 106,656

Accounts payable and sundry liabilities

Included in accounts payable and sundry liabilities are approximately $25,000 (2017 - $26,000) of
payroll deductions.

Fundraising expenses

Included in fundraising expenses are allocated salaries and other compensation costs of
approximately $1,045,000 (2017 - $1,133,000).

Charitable activities - jointly controlled operations

The amount represents funds transferred to the jointly controlled operations in Israel in the year.

Subsequent event

Subsequent to the year end, the organization sold one of its investments in real estate, with a net
book value of approximately $3,166,000, for net proceeds of approximately $3,530,000.

Income taxes

The organization is classified as tax-exempt under Federal and Provincial income tax laws.

Consequently, no provision for income taxes has been reflected in the accompanying financial
statements.

24(1)

- 12-
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA

(KEREN KAYEMETH LE'ISRAEL) INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

16.

i I7 2

18.

Commitments

The minimum rentals payable under long-term operating leases, exclusive of certain operating
costs for which the organization is responsible, are approximately as follows:

2019 3 118,000
2020 113,000
2021 84,000
2022 44,000
2023 41,000
Subsequent years 106,000

$ 506,000

Financial instruments
Interest rate risk

The organization is exposed to changes in interest rates, which could adversely impact expected
returns from the organization's investments held by third party and State of israel bonds.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The
organization is exposed to credit risk as a result of its balance of sale receivable.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. The organization is exposed to market risk as a result of its
investments held by third party and State of Israel bonds.

Comparative amounts

The financial statements have been reclassified, where applicable, to conform to the presentation
used in the current year. The changes do not affect prior year excess of revenues over expenses
after charitable activities.

- 13-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT <

4
To the Directors of
Jewish National Fund of Canada Inc. @
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Jewish Natiohal Fund of Canada Inc., which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019 /and the statements of changes in net assets,
revenues and expenses and cash flows for the year ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of%&e matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying financial\ statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Jewish National Fund of Canada Inc. as at December 31, 2019 and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
In common with many not-for-profi anizations, the organization derives revenue from certain
contributions the completeness of wiisl is not susceptible 1o satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly,

our verification of these revenues ited to the amounts recorded in the records of the organization
and we were not able to det e whether adjustments might be necessary to receipts from
contributions, excess of revenueg o¥er expenses for the year, assets and net assets.

We conducted our audit ordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under tho dards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Stateme tion of our report. We are independent of the organization in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.

24(1)

24(1)
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24(1)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (cont'd.)

/i

"/
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governan the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatiofi of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit arganizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the firebaration of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errg

In preparing the financial statements, management is respo
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma
going concern basis of accounting unless manageme /e

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to fo sg.

%

Gverseeing the organization's financial reporting

e for assessing the organization's ability
rs related to going concern and using the
er intends to liquidate the organization or to

Those charged with governance are responsible fo
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Fin%ia! Statements
Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable 2ssurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance\is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canagiangeneraily accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists, ements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the , they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basj these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted a g standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism thmughrﬁ audit. We also:
f

+ |dentify and assess the risl
fraud or error, design
evidence that is suffici
detecting a material
fraud may involve
internal control.

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtfain audit
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
tement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
ion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

24(1)
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24(1)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (cont'd.) )
i

4
» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and@ reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disciosures made by management. ?

+ Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use o going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a m uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the oygarlization’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exjsts/ we are required o draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the finaheial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusio based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future gvenfs or conditions may cause the organization to
cease to continue as a going concem.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial stateéments represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our,

0

24(1)
1
Montréal, Québec
24(1)
24(1)
24(1)
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019
2019 2018
ASSETS
Current
Cash $ 6615973 § 6,323,709

Investments held by third parties (Note 4)

State of Israel bonds (Note 5)

Accounts receivable (Note 6)

Prepaid expenses and sundry assets

Current portion of balance of sale receivable (Note 9)

Life insurance policies (Note 7) @
Loan receivable (Note 8) @

Balance of sale receivable (Note 9)
Investments in real estate (Note 10)

Property and equipment (Note 11)

2018 - $349,623)

LIABILITIES ‘%

Current
Accounts payable and sundry li s (Note 12)

Salaries and vacation payable

Y

Intangible assets (net of accumulated amort%\tion of $358,315;

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS:

Member

Member

See accompanying notes
- 4-

12,186,387 13,917,953

58,689 76,782
1,242,042 555,925

ﬂ 38,397 29,802
866,261 841,060

21,007,749 21,745,231
269,529 267,402
280,000 280,000
892,448 1,758,711

3,123,605 6,430,219

82,778 99,669

35,176 43,054

§ 25,691,285 $§ 30,624,286

$ 12238418 113,648
150,319 160,722

1,374,160 274,370

24317125 30,349,916

$ _25691,285 § 30,624,286
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018

Balance, as previously stated

Prior period adjustment (Note 13)

Balance, beginning of year, as restated

Deficiency of revenues over expenses for the year after

charitable activities

Balance, end of year

See accompanying notes
- 5-

$ 29,722,403 $§ 35,936,261

627,513 749,311

30,349,916 36,685,572

ﬁ (6,032,791)  (6,335.656)

4y
QS 24,317,125 § 30,349,916
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24(1)

JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018
Revenues
Receipts from contributions $ 11,759,383 § 11,562,343
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies 2127 3,386
Investment income 398,603 1,183,000
Interest income from balance of sale receivable (Note 9) 67,637 92,074
ﬁzzzmso 12,840,803
Fundraising expenses (Note 14) : 0% 2,832,291 3,073,156
Excess of revenues over fundraising expenses @ © 395,459 9,767,647
Expenses
General and administrative | 3,886,285 3,569,793
Amortization 27,374 31,925
3,913,659 3,601,718
Excess of revenues over expenses before undern items 5,451,800 6,165,929
Gain (loss) on disposition of investments in real estate | 363,869 (35,808)
{Impairment) recovery of investments in ma!’%\ale - {192,762) 229,237
Loan receivable adjustment related to shared expenses - (516,949)
Unrealized gain (loss) on fair value adju nt of investments held
by third party 871,000 (1,447,343)
Excess of revenues over exmnses@m charitable activities 6,523,907 4,395,066
Charitable activities - jointly con operations {Note 15) 9,254,628 6,723,033
Charitable activities | 3,302,070 4,007,689

Deficiency of revenues ovgr expenses for the year after
charitable activities

See accompanying notes

$_(6032791)3 _(6335656)
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24(1)

JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018
Operating activities
Deficiency of revenues over expenses for the year $ (6,032,791)$ (6,335,656)
Adjustments for
Amortization : 27,374 31,925
{Increase) decrease in fair value of investments held by third
parties (871,000) 1,447,343
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies (2,127) (3,386)
Impairment (reversal) of investments in real estate 192,762 (229,237)
(Gain) loss on disposition of investments in real estate Y/) (363,869) 35,808
Loan receivable adjustment related to shared experises Q - 516,949
(7,049,651) {4,536,254)
Net change in non-cash working capital items
Increase in accounts receivable (686,117) (283,700)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and sundry (8,595) 182,681
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and sundry liabilities 1,110,193 {172,699)
Decrease in salaries and vacation payable : (10,403) (21,834)
Cash used in operating activities (6,644,573) (4,831,806)
Investing activities
Decrease in State of israel bonds 18,093 3,928
Increase in investments in real estate {52,367) {248,982)
Net proceeds from sale of investments in real estate 3,530,088 4,188,192
Decrease (increase) in investments held by third party 2,602,566 (6,054,403)
Decrease in balance of sale receivabie 841,062 816,625
Purchase of property and equipment (1,790) (14,175)
Purchase of intangible assets (815) -
Repayment of loan receivable ; - 486,512
Cash provided by (used in} investifig-activities I 6,936,837 (822,303)
Increase (decrease) in cash 292,264 (5,654,109)
Cash, beginning of year 6,323,709 11,977,818
Cash, end of year 6,615,973 § 6,323,709

See accompanying notes
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

1. Purpose of the organization

Jewish National Fund of Canada Inc. raises funds from various Canadian sources. These funds
are used for charitable purposes in Israel through various arrangements with the organization.
The organization is incorporated under the Canada Not-for-profit Corporations Act (NFP Act) and
is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act.

Consequently, no provision for income taxes has been reflecte the accompanying financial

The organization is classified as tax-exempt under Federal and-Rrovincial income tax laws.
statements.

w5
24(1)

3. Significant accounting policies
The crganization applies the Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.
(a) Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial-statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organiz requires rmanagement to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported nts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities
at the date of the financi atements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reported d. These estimates are reviewed periodically, and as adjustments
become necessary are reported in the excess of revenues over expenses in the period
in which they be own.

Estimates m management include the impairment of loan receivable and balance of
sale receiva ful life of property and equipment, salary and vacation payable accruals,
the allocatio salaries and compensation costs, and the valuation of investments in real
estate. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Financial instruments
(i) Measurement of financial instruments

The organization initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair

value. Subsequent thereto, its financial assets and finanejal liabilities are measured at
amortized cost, except for its investments held by thi rties, State of Israel bonds,
and cash surrender value of life insurance policies, are subsequently measured

at fair value. Changes in fair value are reoogni%n the excess of revenues over
expenses for the year.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost i e cash, accounts receivable (net of
sales taxes), loan receivable and balance of sa ivable.

Financial liabilities measured at amortiz t include accounts payable and sundry
liabilities and salaries and vacation paya

(i) Impairment

Financial assets measured at am cost are tested for impairment when there are
indicators of possible impairment. The amount of the write-down is recognized in the
excess of revenues over expenises for the year. The previously recognized impairment
loss may be reversed to the extent of the improvement, directly or by adjusting the
allowance account, provided it ¥s no greater than the amount that would have been
reported at the date of ,the reversal had the impairment not been recognized
previously. The amount o reversal is recognized in the excess of revenues over
expenses for the year,

Revenue recognition

The organization fol deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted
contributions are r ized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestrict tributions are recognized as revenue when received. Pledges are

recognized as rev when coliectability is assured. Bequests are recognized as revenue
when assets d can be reasonably identified and measured. Gifts in kind in the form of
investments ife insurance policies are recognized as revenue when assets donated can
be reasona tified and measured.

Balance of sale receivable

Balance of sale receivable is recorded at the face amount of the contract less any
impairment.

Interest income is recorded when collectability is assured. The balance of sale receivable is
impaired when in the opinion of management there is a reasonable doubt as to the ultimate
collectability of any principal or interest.




24(1)

JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

(e)

0

(9)

(h)

Investments in real estate

The organization follows the cost method of accounting for real estate. Any costs incurred to
maintain or improve the properties have been added to the cost. These assets are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an impairment might exist.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and are W amortized over their estimated
useful lives. The annual amortization rates and methods aré as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 0 20% declining balance
Data processing equipment 20% declining balance

Amortization of leasehold improvements is rec@ over the remaining term of the lease.
The average term of a lease is five years.

Intangible asset's

Intangible assets are recorded at cost are being amortized over their estimated useful
lives. The annual amortization rate and method is as follows:

A
Software % 20% declining balance

Allocation of expenses

Compensation costs that ar tly atiributable to fundraising activities are allocated to
fundraising expenses. The amaint of compensation costs allocated is based on the time
spent by the employees o draising activities.

Jointly controlled ope ns
The organization cts jointly controlied operations with Keren Kayemeth Le'lsrael in
Israel. The organi n records on the balance sheet its share of assets it controls and its

share of liabiliti
share of expe

curred and on the income statement, its share of revenue earned and its
ncurred by the joint arrangement.

4, Investments held by third parties

These investments are held and administered by the Jewish Community Foundation of Montréal
and the Jewish Community Foundation of Greater Toronto.

- 10-
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

5. State of Israel bonds

State of Israel bonds have been adjusted to fair market value. The bonds mature at various
dates from November 2020 to May 2024 and bear interest at an average rate of approximately
4.89% (2018 - 5.10%) per annum. Approximately $2,600 (U.S. $2,500) (2018 - $2,600 (U.S.
$2,500)) of State of Israel Bonds are denominated in U.S. currency.

6. Accounts receivable

47% 2019 2018
Sales taxes receivable $ 229,803 $ 255,791
Other receivables 1,012,239 300,134
67 s t1zo0ms  sssen

r g Life insurance policies

This includes insurance policies having a ¢ surrender value of $176,000 (2018 - $174,000)
net of loans to finance premiums. The face value of all the insurance policies is $1,966,000
(2018 - $2,000,000), which is net of %tstanding loans of approximately $115,000 (2018 -
$107,000).

8. Loan receivable

|

This loan receivable from a 24(1) was advanced as part of his

24(1) It is nop<interest bearing and will be repaid from the proceeds of an
insurance policy on his life. life insurance policy has been assigned to the organization as
security.

same year. The

zation provided the buyer a balance of sale subject to a mortgage secured
against the prope

The balance of sale receivable, bears interest at 3% per annum, repayable
in quarterly installments of $227,175 combining principal and interest,

maturing in December 2021 $ 1,758,709

Less current portion 866,261

Due beyond one year i 892,448
- 11-
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

10. Investments in real estate

The organization is responsible to pay for all the expenses and costs related to its properties.
Costs of $52,367 (2018 - $314,745) were capitalized during the year.

11.  Property and equipment

2019 ﬁ/ 2018
Accumula%

Cost amortization Net
Furniture and fixtures $ 568,888 $ @ $ 25,111 § 31,323
Data processing
equipment 1,048,715 ;004,052 44,663 53,880
Leasehold improvements 45,541 36,537 13,004 14,466
X

$ 1,667,144 1,584,366

§.__ 827783 09660

12.  Accounts payable and sundry liabilities

Included in accounts payable and sundry) liabilities are approximately $30,000 (2018 - $25,000)
of payroll deductions.

13.  Prior period adjustment

controlled operations was no ailable and accordingly, the financial statements did not reflect

In the prior year, the financ ormation relating fo the organization's activities in its jointly
the activities of these operat g{

During the year, financia rmation of the jointly controlled operations became available which

resulted in an adjustm the amount of charitable activities - jointly controlled operations that
was incurred in the prion year.
The adjustment in an increase in the deficiency of revenues over expenses after

charitable activiti r the year 2018 of $121,798.

Also, the adjusiment resulted in a decrease in the deficiency of revenues over expenses after |
charitable activities for the years prior to 2018 by $749,311, |

These adjustments have been recorded as a prior period adjustment, which increased the
opening balance of net assets as at January 1, 2019 and January 1, 2018 by $627,513 and
$749,311, respectively.

14. Fundraising expenses

Included in fundraising expenses are allocated salaries and other compensation costs of
approximately $1,135,000 (2018 - $1,045,000).
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

15.

16.

17.

Charitable activities - jointly controlled operations

The amount represents the organization's share of expenditures incurred by the jointly contrelled
operations in Israel in the year.

Subsequent events

(i)

(i1)

COVID-19 pandemic

On March 11, 2020, the Warld Health Organization
The potential economic effects within the entity's envi
possible disruption in supply chains, and measure
government to curtail the spread of the virus (su travel restrictions, closures of non-
essential municipal and private operations, i sition of quarantines and social
distancing) could have a material impact on entity's operations. The extent of the
impact of this outbreak and related contai t measures on the entity’s operations
cannot be reliably estimated at this time.

rized COVID-19 as a pandemic.
rment and in the global markets,
ng introduced at various levels of

The organization has taken out several
operations and has received governm
and the Canada Emergency Wage Su

res to mitigate the impact of the crisis on its
istance under the Temporary Wage Subsidy

Sale of investment in real es:tat%a
Subsequent to the year end, the organization sold its remaining investment in real estate,

with a net book value of approximately $3,124,000, for net proceeds of approximately
$3,124,000.

Commitments

The minimum rentals payader long-term operating leases, exclusive of certain operating
costs for which the organi is“- is responsible, are approximately as follows:

2020 $ 246,000
2021 134,000
2022 40,000
2023 36,000
2024 ; 36,000
Subsequent years 51,000

$ 543,000

- 13-
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

18.

19.

Financial instruments
Interest rate risk

The organization is exposed to changes in interest rates, which could adversely impact expected
returns from the organization's investments held by third party and State of Israel bonds.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will f perform its obligations. The
organization is exposed to credit risk as a result of its balanqy% sale receivable.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The nization is exposed to market risk as a
result of its investments held by third party and Stat srael bonds.

Comparative amounts
The financial statements have been r ified, where applicable, to conform to the

presentation used in the current year. The changes do ot affect prior year excess of revenues
over expenses after charitable activilies%

5

@@
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT &

G

To the Directors of Q

Jewish National Fund of Canada Inc. @

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Jewish N al Fund of Canada Inc., which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, ,and the statements of changes in net assets,
revenues and expenses and cash flows for the year, ended, and notes to the financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting polici

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of\the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in afl material respects, the
financial position of Jewish Nationa! Fund of Canada Inc, as at December 31, 2020 and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations. j
Basis for Qualified Opinion \

In common with many - not-for-profit nizations, - the organization derives revenue from certain
contributions the completeness of wh not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly,
our verification of these revenues ited to the amounts recorded in the records of the organization
and we were not able to det whether adjustments might be necessary to receipts from
contributions, excess of reven r expenses for the year, assets and net assets.

We conducted our audit in
responsibilities under those

ordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
rds are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Stat ion of our report. We are independent of the organization in accordance
with the ethical requirem at are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.

24(1)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (cont.d.)ﬂﬂ
&

g
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governa % the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair pre of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards. for not-for-p rganizations, and for such intemal
control as management determines is necessary tc enable t ration of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

In preparing the financial statements, management is res|
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applica
going concern basis of accounting unless managem
cease operations, or has no realistic aiternative but t

ble for assessing the organization's ability
atters related to going cencem and using the
j intends to liquidate the organizalion or to

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization's financial reporting

&
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finaritial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable nce about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assura a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. tements can arise from fraud or eror and are considered
material if, individually or in the agg . they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the ba these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance
with Canadian generally accepte iting standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throug e audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the
fraud or error, design/a
evidence that is suffici
detecting a material i
fraud may involve
intemal control.

of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
perform- audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
t and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
atement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
lusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

+  Obtain an understanding of intemal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

24(1)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (cont'd.)

Lgy

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used ar%e reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a m uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ojganization's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude thal a material uncertainty exjsts/ we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the fi al statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusion based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future gvenjs or conditions may cause the organization to
cease to continue as a going concem.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statefents represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

t.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
internal control that we identify during oug

7A)
24(1)
v
Montreéal, Québec
24(1)
24(1)
.3 24(1)
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020
2020 2019
ASSETS
Current
Cash $ 8772085 % 6615973
Investments held by third parties (Note 5) 14,850,560 12,186,387
State of Israel bonds (Note 6) 55,767 58,689
Accounts receivable (Note 7) 1,564,602 1,242,042
Prepaid expenses and sundry assets 44 805 38,397
Current portion of balance of sale receivable (Note 10) 892 486 866,261
0%
26,180,305 21,007,749
Life insurance policies (Note 8) @ 275,638 269,529
Loan receivable (Note 9) @ 280,000 280,000
Balance of sale receivable (Note 10) - 892,448
Investment in real estate - 3,123,605
Property and equipment (Note 11) 4 73,542 82,778
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amo tion of $385,350;
2019 - $358,315) 28,141 35,176
$ 26,837,626 $ 25,691,285
LIABILITIES ;%
Current
Accounts payable and sundry lia s (Note 12) $ 64,713 § 1,223,841
Salaries and vacation payable 221,780 150,319
@ 286,493 1,374,160
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 26,551,133 _ 24,317,125

$_26837,626 § 25691285

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS:

il 24(1 ) Member
- " Member

See accompanying notes
=l

0

00043




24(1)

JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

2020 2019
Balance, beginning of year $ 24317125 § 30,349,916
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses for the year after
charitable activities 2,234,008 (6,032,791)
Balance, end of year Sj 26,551,133 $ 24,317,125

X

@@

¢

2
Q

0
Y

See accompanying notes
o
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

2020 2019
Revenues
Receipts from contributions $ 6782634 $ 11,759,383
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies 6,108 2,127
Investment income 518,824 398,603
Interest income from balance of sale receivable (Note 10) 42,476 67,637
Govemment assistance (Note 15) 932,346 -
(Z 8,282,388 12,227,750
0%
Fundraising expenses (Note 13) 1,044 979 2,811,923
Excess of revenues over fundraising expenses 7,237,409 9,415,827
Expenses
General and administrative 3,037,432 3,906,653
Amortization 22,972 27,374
3,060,404 3,934,027
Excess of revenues over expenses before under items 4,177,005 5,481,800
(Loss) gain on dispositicn of investment in rﬁg estate (11,218) 363,869
Impairment of investment in real estate . (192,762)
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustment gf investments held by
third party 824,809 871,000
Excess of revenues over expenses charitable activities 4,990,596 6,523,907
Charitable activities - jointly contr, operations (Note 14) (417,950) (9,254,628)
Charitable activities (2,338,638) (3,302,070)
Excess (deficiency) of reven over expenses for the year after
charitable activities $__2234008 $ (6032791)

See accompanying notes
=
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

2020

2019

Operating activities

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses for the year

Adjustments for
Amortization
Increase in fair value of investments held by third parties
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies
Impairment of investments in real estate
Loss (gain) on disposition of investments in real estate

0%
Net change in non-cash working capital items
Increase in accounts receivable
Increase in prepaid expenses and sundry assets

(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and sundry liabilitie
Increase (decrease) in salaries and vacation payable

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Investing activities
Decrease in State of Israel bonds
Increase in investments in real estate

Net proceeds from sale of investments in estate
(Increase) decrease in investments held by third party
Decrease in balance of saie receivabie

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Cash provided by investing activities %

@@

Increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

See accompanying notes
e Fe

$ 2234008 § (6,032,791)

000046

22,972 27,374
(824,809)  (871,000)
(6,108) (2.127)

. 192,762
11,218 (363,869)
1,437,281  (7,049,651)
(322,560)  (686,117)
(6,408) (8,595)
(1,159,129) 1,110,193
71,461 (10.403)
20645 _ (6,644,573)
2,922 18,093

, (52,367)
3,412,387 3,530,088
(1,839,364) 2,602,566
866,223 841,062
(6,701) (1,790)

- (815)
2135467 __ 6,936,837
2,156,112 292,264
6,615,973 __ 6,323,709
$ 8772085 6615973



24(1)

JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

Purpose of the organization

Jewish National Fund of Canada Inc. raises funds from various Canadian sources. These funds
are used for charitable purposes in Israel through various arangements with the organization.
The organization is incorporated under the Canada Not-for-profit Corporations Act (NFP Act) and
is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act.

The organization is classified as tax-exempt under Federal and-Provincial income tax laws.

Consequently, no provision for income taxes has been reflect the accompanying financial
statlements.

2~
2. 24(1)

3. Impact of COVID-19 pandemic %

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization categorized COVID-19 as a pandemic. The
potential economic_effects within thé entity's environment and in the global markets, possible

disruption in supply chains, and res being introduced at various levels of government to
curtail the spread of the virus ( travel restrictions, closures of non-essential municipal and
private operations, imposition rantines and social distancing) could have a material impact

on the entity's operations.

The pandemic has had a si@gative effect on its operations and revenue commencing in March
2020. The financial im of the pandemic resulted in a drop in revenues for the periods of
March 2020 to Decem 20.

impact of the crisis on its operations, the company applied for the
idy, Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy and Canada Emergency Rent
relief measures, for which it was eligible. As of December 31, 2020, the
company has claimed $932,346 in govemment assistance for the period of March 2020 to
December 2020 as described in Note 15.
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

4. Significant accounting policies

The organization applies the Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

(a)

(b)

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, di res of contingent liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported affo@nts of revenue and expenses
during the reported period. These estimates are revi iodically, and as adjustments
become necessary they are reported in the excess of revenues over expenses in the period
in which they become known.

Estimates made by management include the imp t of loan receivable and balance of
sale receivable, useful life of property and equi t, Salary and vacation payable accruals,
the allocation of salaries and compensation co nd the valuation of investments in real
eslate. Actual results could differ from those tes.

Financial instruments

(i) Measurement of financial instru

value. Subsequent thereto, its\financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost, except for its ifyestments held by third parties, State of Israel bonds,
and cash surrender value of life insurance policies, which are subsequently measured
at fair value. Changes in/fair value are recognized in the excess of revenues over
expenses for the year.

The organization initiaily meaﬁres its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair

Financial assels mea at amortized cost include cash, accounts receivable (net of
sales taxes), loanr able and balance of sale receivable.

Financial liabilitie; red at amortized cost include accounts payable and sundry
liabilities and ﬁs and vacaticn payable.

(ii) Impairment

Financial/assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are
indicat: possible impairment. The amount of the write-down is recognized in the
excess enues over expenses for the year, The previously recegnized impairment
loss may be reversed to the extent of the improvement, directly or by adjusting the
allowance account, provided it is no greater than the amount that would have been
reported at the date of the reversal had the impairment not been recognized
previously. The amount of the reversal is recognized in the excess of revenues over
expenses for the year.
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

4,

Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

(c)

(d)

(e)

M

(@

(h)

Revenue recognition

The organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted
contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received. Pledges are
recognized as revenue when collectability is assured. Beq are recognized as revenue
when assets donated can be reasonably identified and me . Gifts in kind in the form of
investments and life insurance policies are recognized as nue when assets donated can
be reasonably identified and measured. 0Q

Balance of sale receivable

Balance of sale receivable is recorded al the @ amount of the contract less any
impairment.

Interest income is recorded when coliectabiiit
impaired when in the opinion of managemey
collectability of any principal or interest.

assured. The balance of sale receivable is
ere is a reasonable doubt as to the ultimate

Investment in real estate
The organization foiiows the cost of accounting for real estaie. Any costs incurred to
maintain or improve the properties tiave been added to the cost. These assets are tested for
impairment when there is an indicatign that an impairment might exist.

Cash surrender value of jife ifsurance

Cash surrender value of lif rance Is recorded as the amount currently available, plus
the deferred surrender s which are available to the organization in the future,

provided the policy is for a minimum time period, as stipulated in the insurance
contracl.

Property and mu@t
Property and equi t are recorded at cost and are being amortized over their estimated

useful lives. nual amortization rates and methods are as follows:
Furniture and fixtures 20% dedlining balance
Data proc equipment 20% declining balance

Amortization of leasehold improvements is recorded over the remaining term of the lease.
The average term of a lease is five years.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost and are being amortized over their estimated useful
lives. The annual amortization rate and method is as follows:

Software 20% declining balance

- 10-
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

4, Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

(i) Allocation of expenses

Compensation costs that are directly attributable to fundraising activities are allocated to
fundraising expenses. The amount of compensation costs allocated is based on the time

spent by the employees on fundraising activities.
(i) Government assistance

Government and other grants related to property a
deferred government assistance and amortized on the

d

uipment are accounted for as
e basis as the related property

and equipment, Operating grants are accounted for @enue when eamed.

(k) Jointly controlled operations

The organization conducts jointly controlled
Israel. The organization records on the bala
share of liabilities incurred and on the inco
share of expenses incurred by the joint arpangement,

5. Investments held by third parties

ions with Keren Kayemeth Le'lsrael in
t its share of assets it controls and its
tement, its share of revenue earmned and its

These investments are held and admini%ed by the Jewish Community Foundation of Montréal

and the Jewish Commiunity Foundation of\Greater Toronto.

6. State of Israel bonds

State of Israel bonds have b ©
dates from December 2021 ‘}
4,94% (2019 - 4.89%) per 4

$2,500)) of State of Israel B

p A Accounts receivable

Y

Sales taxes receivable
Other receivables
Govermnment assistance receivable (Note 15)

< IF=

W adjusted to fair market value. The bonds mature at various

ay 2025 and bear interest at an average rate of approximately
mARum. Approximately $2,600 (U.S. $2,500) (2019 - $2,600 (U.S.
S are denominated in U.S, currency.

2020 2019

$ 353,621 § 229,803

1,048,189 1,012,239
162,792 -

$__ 1564602 $ 1,242,042
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

10.

g

12.

Life insurance policies

This includes insurance policies having a cash surrender value of $182,000 (2019 - $176,000)
net of loans to finance premiums. The face value of all the insurance policies is $1,872,000
(2019 - $1,996,000), which is net of outstanding loans of approximately $57,000 (2019 -
$115,000).

Loan receivable W

This loan receivable from a 24(1) was advanced as part of his
24(1) It is non-interest bearing and will be-sepaid from the proceeds of an
insurance policy on his life. The life insurance policy has/bgen assigned to the organization as
security.

Balance of sale receivable

In 2016, a property having a value of $5,418, s donated to the organization and sold in the
same year, The organization provided the bu alance of sale subject to a mortgage secured
against the property.

The balance of sale receivable, bears interest at 3% per annum, repayable

in quarterly installments of $227,175Acombining principal and interest,

maturing in December 2021 % $ 892,486
Less current portion 892,486
Due beyond one year A i -

Property and equlpme@
@ 2020 2019
Accumulated

Cost amortization Net Net
Furniture and fix $ 568,888 $ 548,799 $ 20,089 $ 25,111
Leasehold im ents 49,541 37,849 11,692 13,004
Data processing
equipment 1,055,416 1,013,655 41,761 44,663
$ 1,673,845 $ 1,600,303 $ 73,542 $ 82,778

Accounts payable and sundry liabilities

Included in accounts payable and sundry liabilities are approximately $43,000 (2019 - $30,000)
of payroll deductions.

. iR
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

13.

14,

15.

16.

Fundraising expenses

Included in fundraising expenses are allocated salaries and other compensation costs of
approximately $936,000 (2019 - $1,135,000).

Charitable activities - jointly controlled operations

The amount represents the organization's share of expendi rred by the jointly controlled
operations in Israel in the year.

Government assistance @
The organization has applied and received governmgnt assistance under the Canada

Emergency Wage Subsidy (CEWS) and the Tempo Wage Subsidy (TWS) programs which
helps businesses by subsidizing a portion of t ployees' wages during the COVID-19
pandemic. To be eligible, the organization must n open, continue to pay salary and other
remunerations to eligible employees and experi a decrease in gross revenues. Management
has determined that the organization meets t ia under CEWS and TWS and has recorded
a combined amount of $873,109 for the between March and December 2020, as
revenue, of which $103,555 is recorded in ts receivable at year-end.

The organization has also applied for gayemment assistance under the Canada Emergency Rent
Subsidy (CERS) program which heips C ian businesses, non-profit organizations, or charities
who have seen a drop in revenue during COVID-19 pandemic cover part of their commercial
rent or property expenses. Management has determined that the organization meets the criteria
under CERS and has recorded an(\amount of $59,237 for the periods between October and
December 2020, as revenue, of which $59,237 is recorded in accounts receivable at year-end.

Commitments

The minimum rentals pa under long-term operating leases, exclusive of certain operating
costs for which the orga on is responsible, are approximately as follows:

2021 $ 201,000
2022 63,000
2023 60,000
2024 60,000
2025 60,000
Subsequent years 25,000

$ 469000

- 13' i
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

1.

18.

Financial instruments
Interest rate risk

The organization is exposed to changes in interest rates, which could adversely impact expected
returns from the organization's investments held by third party and State of Israel bonds.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will f perform its obligations. The
organization is exposed to credit risk as a result of its balan% le receivable.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The nization is exposed to market risk as a
result of its investments held by third party and Stat srael bonds.

Comparative amountis

The financial statements have been ified, where applicable, fo conform to the

presentation used in the current year. The changes do not affect prior year excess of revenues
over expenses after charitable acliviti%%

4

@@
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24(1)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ﬁ
7 =
To the Directors of N
Jewish National Fund of Canada Inc. @
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Jewish Nation nd of Canada Inc., which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, the statements of changes in net assets,
revenues and expenses and cash flows for the year th nded, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies

In our opinion, except for the possibie effects of er described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying financial stafemenis present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Jewish National Fund of Canada Inc. as at December 31, 2021 and its resuits of
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
In common with many not-for-profit or,
contributions the completeness of whi
our verification of these revenues was Ji
and we were not able to- determis
contributions, excess of revenues o

tions, the organization derives revenue from certain
t susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly,
jited to the amcunts recorded in the records of the organization
ether adjustrments might be necessary to receipts from
Expenses for the year, assets and net assets.

We conducted our audit in -ﬁ ance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those sta é’ are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Financial Statements sg
with the ethical requiremenj
have fulfilled our other l' ical
the audit evidence we
opinion.

on of our repert. We are independent of the organization in accordance

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
2/obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified

24(1)

24(1)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (cont'd.)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the prepa of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible fgl%sesing the organization's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters ted to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either i to liquidate the organization or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsibie for overﬁg the organization's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statéments

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abgut whether the financial statements as & whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to f or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a highevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the agagregate, they cguld reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance

with Canadian generally accepied auditing dtandards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughoui the audit\ We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of materigl misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perf audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient a ropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstate sulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as
fraud may involve collusi gery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contral.

+  Obtain an understandi internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate jfi the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the ization's internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

24(1)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (cont'd.) 2

¢+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the organization's ability to continue as a going

concern. |If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are jred to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statem or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on udit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditi may cause the organization fo

cease to continue as a going concem.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content o financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represe underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentatior,

We communicate with those charged with governance r ding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit fipdings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit. f e

.. 24(1)

)
Montréal, Québec
24(1)
24(1)
24(1)
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020

ASSETS

Current
Cash
Investments held by third parties (Note 6)
State of Israel bonds (Note 7)
Accounts receivable (Note 8)
Prepaid expenses and sundry assets
Balance of sale receivable

Life insurance policies (Note 9) @
Loan receivable (Note 10) L@

Property and equipment (Note 11)

Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization of $370,978;

$ 10493990 § 8,772,085
21,943,018 14,850,560

64,880 55,767
779,216 1,564,602
/ 16,722 44,805
“ 892 486
V)
S 33,297,826 26,180,305
283,874 275,638
280,000 280,000
59,994 73,542
22,513 28,141

2020 - $365,350)

A

\\

LIABILITIES A\

Current
Accounts payable and sundry liabilities {(Note 12)
Salaries and vacation payable
Deferred contributions (Note 13) &)

NET ASSETS @@

Unrestricted

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS:

Member

Member

See accompanying notes
=

$ 33944207 § 26,837,626

$ 129,372 § 64,713
151,428 221,780
9,754,550 5,510,585

10,035,350 5,797,078

23,908,857 21,040,548

$ 33,944,207 § 26,837,626
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020
Balance, as previously stated $ 26,551,133 $ 24,317,125
Prior period adjustment (Note 3) (5,510,585) (6.766,732)
Balance, beginning of year, as restated 21,040,548 17,550,393
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year after
charitable activities gﬂ 2,868,309 3,490,155
Balance, end of year 0%* 23,908,857 $ 21 040,548

See accompanying notes
- B
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020
Revenues
Receipts from contributions $ 12822264 $§ 6,782,634
Receipts from contributions deferred (Note 13) (7,752,314) (1,082,491)
Deferred contributions recognized (Note 13) ,508,349 2,338,638
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies 8,236 6,108
Investment income 1,193,626 518,824
Interest income from balance of sale receivable 16,213 42,476
Government assistance (Note 14) ﬂﬂ 692,297 932,346
L)
0% 10,488,671 9,538,535
Fundraising expenses (Note 15) @ 1,529,016 1,044,979
Excess of revenues over fundraising expenses 8,959,655 8,493,556
Expenses @
General and administrative 3,236,714 3,037,432
Amortization 19,17¢ 22972
2,255,890 3,060,404
Excess of revenues over expenses before ungdernoted items 5,702,765 5,433,152
Expenses incurred on sale of investment in real estate (83,223) (11,218)
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustment of investiments held by
third party 756,116 824,809
Excess of revenues over expenses before/charitable activities 6,376,658 6,246,743
Charitable activities - jointiy cont operations - (417,950)
(3,508,349) (2,338,638)

Charitable activities @
Excess of revenues over expenses for the yaar after

charitable activities

See accompanying notes

$ 2868309 § 3,490,155
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020
Operating activities
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year $ 2,868,309 $§ 3,490,155
Adjustments for ;
Amortization 19,176 22,972
Increase in fair value of investments held by third parties (756,116) (824,809)
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies (8,236) (6,108)
Loss on disposition of investments in real estate 83,223 11,218
Non-cash increase in investments in real estate 3,424,000) -
OQ (1,217,644) 2,693,428
Net change in non-cash working capital items ’
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 785,386 (322,560)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and sundry asse! 28,083 (6,408)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and sundry liabili 64,658 (1,159,129)
(Decrease) increase in salaries and vacation payable (70,352) 71,461
Increase (decrease) in deferred confributions 4,243 966 (1,256,147)
Cash provided by operating activities 3,834,097 20,645
Investing activities
(Increase) decrease in State of Israel bonds (8,113} 2922
Net proceeds from sale of investments in real estate 3,340,777 3,112,387
Increase in investments held by third party (6,336,342) (1,839,364)
Decrease in balance of sale receivable 892,486 866,223
Purchase of property and equipment - (6,701)
Cash (used in) provided by investing %ies (2,112,192) 2,135,467
Increase in cash 1,721,905 2,156,112
Cash, beginning of year @ 8,772,085 6615973

Cash, end of year

Y

See accompanying notes

$ 10493990 $ 8,772,085
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

: Purpose of the organization

Jewish National Fund of Canada Inc. raises funds from various Canadian sources. These funds
are used for charitable purposes in Israel through various arrangements with the organization.
The organization is incorporated under the Canada Not-for-profit Corporations Act (NFP Act) and
is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act.

The organization is classified as tax-exempt under Federal and Provincial income tax laws.
Consequently, no provision for income taxes has been reflecte e accompanying financial
statements.

ar

24(1)

)

The organization follows the deferigi method of accounting for contributions which requires
contributions intended for specifi ects (restricted contributions) to be recognized as revenue
in the year in which the related proje€t costs are incurred.

3. Prior period adjustment

In prior years, certain re contributions were recorded as revenue in the year the
contributions were received.rather than deferring the contributions and recording the revenue
only when the related proje€t/costs were incurred.

For years prior to 2020, -tHere was a decrease in the excess of revenues over expenses for the .
year after charita tivities of $6,766,732 which has been recorded as a decrease in the
opening net assetg’baldnce as at December 31, 2019 of $6,766,732.

As a result of ange, for the year ended 2020, there was an increase in the excess of
revenues over expenses for the year after charitable activities of $1,256,147 and deferred
contribution of $5,510,585 and a decrease in the opening net assets balance as at December 31,
2020 of $5,510,585. ’
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

4. Impact of COVID-19 pandemic

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization categorized COVID-19 as a pandemic. The
potential economic effects within the entity's environment and in the global markets, possible
disruption in supply chains, and measures being introduced at various levels of government to
curtail the spread of the virus (such as travel restrictions, closures of non-essential municipal and
private operations, imposition of quarantines and social distancing) have had a material impact
on the entity’s operations.

In order to mitigate the impact of the crisis on its operations, organization applied for the
Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy, which was subsequently r ed by the Canada Recovery
Hiring Program (CRHP), and the Canada Emergency Rent idy government relief measures,
for which it was eligible. The organization has claimed $692,297 in government assistance for
the year ended December 31, 2021 as described in Note

5. Significant accounting policies
The organization applies the Canadian accounti dards for not-for-profit organizations.

(a) Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements‘in“accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of(gssets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reported period. These estimates are reviewed periodically, and as adjustments
become necessary, they are reporied in the excess of revenues over expenses in the period

in which they become known.

Estimates made by mana t include the impairment of loan receivable, useful life of
property -and eguipmen lary and vacation payable accruals, deferred contributions
calculation and the all of salaries and compensation costs. Actual results could differ

from these estimates.

(b) Financial instrum

(i) Measu of financial instruments
The tion initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value. uent thereto, its financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at

amortized cost, except for its investments held by third parties, State of Israel bonds,
and cash surrender value of life insurance policies, which are subsequently measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in the excess of revenues over
expenses for the year.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash, accounts receivable (net of
sales taxes), loan receivable and balance of sale receivable.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and sundry
liabilities, and salaries and vacation payable.
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JEWISH_ NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC. .
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

5.

Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

(®)

(€)

(d)

(e)

‘investments and life insurance policies

Financial instruments (cont'd.)
(i) Impairment

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are
indicators of possible impairment. The amount of the write-down is recognized in the
excess of revenues over expenses for the year. The pregiously recognized impairment
loss may be reversed to the extent of the improve , directly or by adjusting the
allowance account, provided it is no greater than t;ﬁoum that would have been
reported at the date of the reversal had theﬁairmenl not been recognized
previously. The amount of the reversal is recognized in the excess of revenues over
expenses for the year. ;

Revenue recognition

The organization follows the deferral methaccounting for contributions. Restricted
contributions are recognized as revenue in thesyear in which the related project costs are
i ed as revenue when received. Pledges are
is dssured. Bequesis are recognized as revenue
when assets donated can be reasonably/{dej#tified and measured. Gifts in kind in the form of

recognized as revenue when assets donated can

be reasonably ideniified and measured.
Balance of sale receivabie \

Balance of sale receivable is, recorded at the face amount of the contract less any
impairment. :

Interest income is recorded collectability is assured. The balance of sale receivable is

impaired when in the opi of management there is a reasonable doubt as to the ultimate
collectability of any pri or infterest,

Cash surrender val f life insurance

Cash surrender v of life insurance is recorded as the amount currently available, plus
the deferred er charges which are available to the organization in the future,
provided the policy is held for a minimum period, as stipulated in the insurance contract.

- 10-
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

5. Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

U]

(9)

(h)

0

()

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and are being amortized over their estimated
useful lives. The annual amortization rates and methods are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 20% declining balance
Data processing equipment 20% declining balance
Amortization of leasehold improvements is recorded ov remaining term of the lease.

The average term of a lease is five years. OQ

ortized over their estimated useful
follows:

Intangible assets @
Intangible assets are recorded at cost and are being-z
lives. The annual amortization rate and method

Software 20% deciining balance

Allocation of expeiises

Compensation cosis that are directly attributable to fundraising activities are allocated to
fundraising expenses. The amount\of compensation costs allocated is based on the time
spent by the employees on fundrai activities.

Governmeant assistance

Govemnment and other gra lated to property and equipment are accounted for as
deferred govermment assi and amonrtized on the same basis as the related property
and equipment, Operati nts are accounted for as revenue when eamed.

Jointly controlled o ns

Prior to January 1, , the organization conducted jointly controlled operations with Keren
Kayemeth Le'lsra Israel. The organization records on the balance sheet its share of
assets it cont d its share of liabilities incurred and on the income statement, its share
of revenue e and its share of expenses incurred by the joint arrangement.

6. Investments held by third parties

These investments are held and administered by the Jewish Community Foundation of Montréal
and the Jewish Community Foundation of Greater Toronto.

o s
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

State of Israel bonds

State of Israel bonds have been adjusted to fair market value. The bonds mature at various
dates from June 2022 to December 2026 and bear interest at an average rate of approximately
4.64% (2020 - 4.94%) per annum. As at year end, no state of Israel bonds were denominated in
U.S. currency (2020 - approximately $2,600; U.S. $2,500). :

8. Accounts receivable ﬁ
2021 2020
0%
Sales taxes receivable $ 432,506 $ 353,621
Other receivables 342,474 1,048,189
Government assistance receivable (Note 14) 4,236 162,792

@ $ 779216 $ 1,564,602

This includes insurance policies having a cash'surrender value of $190,000 (2020 - $182,000)
net of loans to finance premiums. The face value of all the insurance policies is $1,743,000
(2020 - $1,738,000), which is net of%utslanding loans of approximately $63,000 (2020 -

9. Life insurance policies

$57,000).

10. Loan receivable

This loan receivable from a 24(ﬂ was advanced as part of his

24(1) It is nopiipterest bearing and will be repaid from the proceeds of an
insurance policy on his life, remiums for which are being paid by the 24(1)

24(1)  The life insurance palicy has been assigned to the organization as security.

11.  Property and equipirent

2021 2020
Accumulated
Cost amortization Net Net
Furniture and fixtures $ 568,868 $ 552,817 % 16,071 § 20,089
Leasehold improvements 49,541 39,027 10,514 11,692
Data processing '
equipment 1,055,416 1,022,007 33,409 41,761

1,673,845 § 1,613,851 $ 59,994 $ 73,542

- 12 -
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

12. Accounts payable and sundry liabilities
Included in accounts payable and sundry liabilities are approximately $48,000 (2020 - $43,000)
of payroll deductions.

13. Deferred contributions

been received but not recognized as the related project c ve not been incurred. The

Deferred contributions represent externally restricted donation:%amable purposes that have
changes in the deferred contributions balance are as follows:

g
2021 2020
Deferred contributions, beginning of the vear @ $ 55105685 § 6,766,732
Externally restricted contributions received and d ed
during the year 7,752,314 1,082,491
Externally restricted contributions recognized Bvenue
during the year - (3,508,349) _ (2,338,638)
Deferred contributions, end of the year $ 9754550 § 5510.585
14. Government assistance %

The organization has applied and received govemment assistance under the Canada
Emergency Wage Subsidy (CEWS) program, which was subsequently replaced by the Canada
Recovery Hiring Program (CRHP ich helps businesses by subsidizing a portion of the
employees' wages during the C 9 pandemic. To be eligible, the organization must remain
open, continue to pay salary other remunerations to eligible employees and experience a
decrease in gross revenue: nagement has determined that the organization meets the
criteria under CEWS and and has recorded an aggregate amount of $563,628 (2020 -
$873,109) as revenue duripg)the year, of which $4,236 (2020 - $103,555) is recorded in accounts
receivable at year-end.

The organization has-also applied for government assistance under the Canada Emergency Rent
Subsidy (CERS) p which helps Canadian businesses, non-profit organizations, or charities
who have seen a n revenue during the COVID-19 pandemic cover part of their commercial
rent or property . Management has determined that the organization meets the criteria
under CERS and recorded an amount of $128,669 (2020 - $59,237) as revenue during the
year,

15.. Fundraising expenses

Included in fundraising expenses are allocated salaries and other compensation costs of
approximately $1,172,000 (2020 - $936,000).

- 13-
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

16. Commitments

The minimum rentals payable under long-term operating leases, exclusive of certain operating
costs for which the organization is responsible, are approximately as follows:

2022 $ 249,000
2023 238,000
2024 231,000
2025 : 222,000
2026 . 146,000

17. Financial instruments

@0%$ 1,086,000

The organization is exposed to changes in iniefest/fates, which cauid adversely impact expected
returns from the organization's investments hgid by third party and State of Israel bonds.

Interest rate risk

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair valye or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market) prices. The organization is exposed to market risk
because of its investments held by third party and State of Israel bonds.

@@

- 14-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT W

4,
To the Directors of Q
Jewish National Fund Of Canada Inc. @
Qualified Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Jewish Mation d of Canada Inc., which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, a statements of changes in net assets,

revenues and expenses and cash flows for the year the ded, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible eifects of the er described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying financial staternents present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Jewish National Fund of Canada Inc. as at December 31, 2022 and its results of
operations and its cash flows for the year then e%d in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
In common with many not-for-profit. or tions, the organization derives revenue from certain
contributions the completeness of which i susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly,

and we were not able to determi ther adjustments might be necessary to receipts from

our verification of these revenues was liffiited to the amounts recorded in the records of the organization
contributions, excess of revenues ov nses for the year, assets and net assets.

We conducted our audit in a
responsibilities under those stan

nce with Canadian generally accepled auditing standards. Our
s are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements n of our report. We are independent of the organization in accordance
with the ethical requiremen are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we
have fulfilled our other ethjical/fesponsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we btained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified

opinion.

24(1)

24(1)
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24(1)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (cont'd.)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparatj f financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible fd?%essing the organization's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters retated to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either int, to liquidate the organization or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsibie for ove the organization's financial reporting
process, 5@

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Sféterhents

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abgut ther the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a highTevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian geperally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Missiateﬂgts can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, thev could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance

with Canadian generally accepled auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perf udit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient an ropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstate sulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion , intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

+  Obtain an understandi internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropniate iff thg/ circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the ization's intemal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

24(1)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (cont'd.)

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the organization's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are ed to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statem or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on t udit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or oondﬁf@s may cause the organization to
cease to continue as a going concem.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content o financia! statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represept.the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance  fe garding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit fiadi
internal control that we identify during our audit.

24(1)

g Montréal, Québec
@ 24(1)

24(1)

24(1)
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24(1)

JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021
ASSETS
Current
Cash $ 7,854429 § 10,493,990
Investments held by third parties (Note 4) 22,670,635 21,943,018
State of Israel bonds (Note 5) 59,044 64,880
Accounts receivable (Note 6) 624,439 779,216
Prepaid expenses and sundry assets ﬁ 22,237 16,722
Wy

0 (/31.230.784 33,297,826
Life insurance policies (Note 7) 295,117 283,874
Loan receivable (Note 8) @ 280,000 280,000
Property and equipment (Note 9) 49,040 59,994

Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization of 5@481,
2021 - $370,978) 18,010 22,513

$ 31,872,951 $ 33944207

LIABILITIES
Current ¢
Accounts payable and sundry liabilities (Note%O) $ B7,750 $ 129,372
Salaries and vacation payable 187,570 151,428
Deferred contributions {Note 11) 10,714,451 9,754 550
% 10,989,771 10,035,350
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 0 20,883,180 23,908,857
@ $ 31872951 $ 33,944,207

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS:

24(1) Member
Member

See accompanying notes
- 4-
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

" FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021
Balance, beginning of year $ 23,908,857 § 21,040,548
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses for the year after
charitable activities (3,025,677) 2,868,309
Balance, end of year _ $ 20,883,180 $ 23,908,857

S

See accompanying notes
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021

Revenues
Receipts from contributions $ 13,193,0305 12,822,264
Deferred contributions recognized (Note 11) 6,192,867 3,508,349
Receipts from contributions deferred (Note 11) 7,152,768) (7,752,314)
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies 11,243 8,236
Investment income including realized gains and losses 384,586 1,193,626
Interest income from balance of sale receivable 0 - 16,213
Government assistance (Note 12) % - 692,297
@ 12,628,958 10,488,671
Fundraising expenses (Note 13) 3,877,942 1,529,016
Excess of revenues over fundraising expenses @ 8,751,016 8,959,655

Expenses
General and administrative 3,936,763 3,236,714
Amortization 15,457 19,176
3,952,220 3,255,890
Excess of revenues over expenses before und%r:oted items 4,798,796 5,703,765
Expenses incurred on sale of investment in real/estate - (83,223)
by third party {1,631,606) 756,116

Unrealized gain (loss) on fair value adjljnl of investments held

charitable activities 3,167,190 6,376,658

Charitable activities (6,192,867) (3,508,349)
Excess (deficiency) of revenu@ar expenses for the year after
$

charitable activities (3,025,677)$ 2,868,309

Excess of revenues over expenses @a year before

See accompanying noles
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021

Operating activities
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses for the year
Adjustments for
Amortization
Decrease (increase) in fair value of investments held by third
parties
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies
Loss on disposition of investments in real estate
Non-cash increase in investments in real estate

$ (3,025677)$ 2,868,309
15,457 19,176

1,631,606 (756,116)

(11,243) (8,236)
o 83,223
- (3,424,000)

g
% {1,389,857) (1,217 644)

Decrease in accounts receivable

{Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and sundry asse
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and sundry liagitiles
Increase (decrease) in salaries and vacation payable
Increase in deferred contributions

Net change in non-cash working capital items @
ts

Cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Investing activities
Decrease (increase) in State of Israel bonds
Net proceeds from sale of investments in real gstate
Increase in investments heid by third party
Decrease in balance of sale receivable

Cash used in investing activities
(Decrease) increase in cash A)
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year @

Y

See accompanying notes

154,777 785,386
(5,515) 28,083
(41,622) 64,658
36,142 (70,352)

959,901 4,243,966
(286,174) 3,834,097

5,836 (9,113)

’ 3,340,777
(2,359,223)  (6,336,342)
- 892,486

(2,353,387) __ (2,112,192)
(2,639,561) 1,721,905
10,493,990 8,772,085

§ 7854429 § 10493990
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

1. Purpose of the organization

Jewish National Fund of Canada Inc. raises funds from various Canadian sources. These funds |
are used for charitable purposes in Israel through various arrangements with the organization.
The organization is incorporated under the Canada Not-for-profit Corporations Act (NFP Act) and
is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act.

The organization is classified as tax-exempt under Federal and Provincial income tax laws.

Consequently, no provision for income taxes has been reflect accompanying financial
statements.
2~
” 2
24(1)

< N Significant accounting polici
The organization applies the @ian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

(a) Measurement uncertai

for not-for-profit orgasiizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the repQ ed amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities
at the date of / nancial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the rego period. These estimates are reviewed periodically, and as adjustments
ig ry, they are reported in the excess of revenues over expenses in the period
in which they become known.

The preparation of ﬁcial staiemenis in accordance with Canadian accounting standards

Estimates made by management include the impairment of loan receivable, useful life of
property and equipment, salary and vacation payable accruals, deferred contributions
calculation and the allocation of salaries and compensation costs. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Financial instruments
(i) Measurement of financial instruments

The organization initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair

value. Subsequent thereto, its financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost, except for its investments held by thir rties, State of Israel bonds,
and cash surrender value of life insurance policies, are subsequently measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recogniz the excess of revenues over
expenses for the year.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost i cash, accounts receivable (net of
sales taxes receivable) and loan receivable.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized include accounts payable and sundry
liabilities (net of government remittances), salaries and vacation payable.

(i) Impairment

Financial assets measured at amo cost are tested for impairment when there are
indicators of possible impairment. The amount of the write-down is recognized in the
excess of revenues over expenses for the year. The previously recognized impairment
loss may be reversed to the entent of the improvement, directly or by adjusting the
allowance account, provided it I8 no greater than the amount that would have been
reporied at the date of the reversal had the impairment not been recognized
previcusly. The amouni of(the reversal is recognized in the excess of revenues over
expenses for the year.

Revenue recognition
The organization foll deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted

contributiocns are rec as revenue in the year in which the related project costs are
incurred. Unrestricte

can be reasonably identified and measured. Gifts in kind in the form of
insurance policies are recognized as revenue when assets donated can
ified and measured.

Balance of sale receivable

Balance of sale receivable is recorded at the face amount of the contract less any
impairment.

Interest income is recorded when collectability is assured. The balance of sale receivable is

impaired when in the opinion of management there is a reasonable doubt as to the ultimate
collectability of any principal or interest.
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
(e) Cash surrender value of life insurance
Cash surrender value of life insurance is recorded as the amount currently available, plus

the deferred surrender charges which are available to the organization in the future,
provided the policy is held for a minimum periad, as stipulated in the insurance contract.

(f) Property and equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost and are being-dmortized over their estimated

useful lives. The annual amortization rates and methods’are as follows:

Fumiture and fixtures 20% declining balance
Data processing equipment 20% declining balance

Amortization of leasehold improvements is rec over the remaining term of the lease.
The average term of a lease is five years.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost a e being amortized over their estimated useful
lives. The annual amortization rate and méthod is as follows:

Software % 20% declining balance

(h) Allocation of expenses
Compensation costs that ar tiy atiributable to fundraising activities are allocated to
fundraising expenses. The nt of compensalion costs allocated is based on the time
spent by the employees o draising activities.

(i) Government assistan

Government and grants related to property and equipment are accounted for as
deferred govern assistance and amortized on the same basis as the related property
and equipment rating grants are accounted for as revenue when eamed.

4. Investments held by third parties
These investments are held and administered by the Jewish Community Foundation of Montréal
and the Jewish Community Foundation of Greater Toronto.

5. State of Israel bonds
State of Israel bonds have been adjusted to fair market value. The bonds mature at various

dates from January 2023 to December 2026 (2021 - June 2022 to December 2026) and bear
interest at an average rate of approximately 3.36% (2021 - 4.64%) per annum.

- 10-
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

6. Accounts receivable

2022 2021
Sales taxes receivable $ 221,090 § 432,506
Other receivables 403,349 342,474
Government assistance receivable - 4,236

|
$ 779,216 !
|

7 Life insurance policies |
This includes insurance policies having a cash sunender@ of approximately $201,000 (2021 |
- $190,000) net of loans to finance premiums. The face including any paid up additions of |
all the insurance policies is approximately 31,741, (2021 - $1,743,000), which is net of
outstanding loans of approximately $66,000 (2021 - ).

8. Loan receivable
This loan receivable from a 24(1) was advanced as part of his |
24(1) It is non-interest gearing and will be repaid from the proceeds of an

insurance policy on his life, the premium$\for which are being paid by the 24(1)

24(1) The life insurance policy has assigned to the organization as security.

9. Property and equipment ‘A\))
2 2022 2021

@ Accumulated

Cost amortization Net Net
Furniture and fixtures @ $ 568,888 $ 556,031 $ 12,857 $ 16,071

Leasehold improvem 49,541 40,085 9,456 10,514

Data processing
equipment 1,055,416 1,028,689 26,727 33,409
$ 1673845 § 1,624,805 $ 49,040 $ 59,994

10.  Accounts payable and sundry liabilities

Included in accounts payable and sundry liabilities are approximately $48,000 (2021 - $48,000)
of payroll deductions.

- 11 =
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

1.

12.

13.

Deferred contributions

Deferred contributions represent externally restricted donations for charitable purposes that have
been received but not recognized as the related project costs have not been incurred. The
changes in the deferred contributions balance are as follows:

2022 2021
Deferred contributions, beginning of the year W 9,754,550 § 5,510,585
Externally restricted contributions received and deferred
during the year 7482768 7,752,314
Externally restricted contributions recognized as reven
during the year (6,192,867) (3,508,349)
Deferred contributions, end of the year @ $ 10,714,451 $§ 9,754,550
Government assistance

The organization had received government stance under the Canada Emergency Wage
Subsidy (CEWS) program, which was subseqtently replaced by the Canada Recovery Hiring
Program (CRHP), which heips busi s by subsidizing a portion of the employees’ wages
during the COVID-19 pandemic. To be éligible, the organization must remain open, continue to
pay salary and other remunerations o ible employees and experience a decrease in gross
revenues. Management had determined {hat the organization meets the criteria under CEWS
and CRHP and had recorded an egate amount of $Nil {2021 - $563,628) as revenue during
the year, of which $Nil (2021 - $4,236) is recorded in accounts receivable at year-end.

The organization had also applied for government. assistance under the Canada Emergency
Rent Subsidy (CERS) progra ich helps Canadian businesses, non-profit organizations, or
charities who have seen a n revenue during the COVID-19 pandemic cover part of their
commercial rent or property nses. Management had determined that the organization meets
the criteria under CERS has recorded an amount of $Nil (2021 - $128,669) as revenue
during the year.

Fundraising e es

Included in fundraising expenses are allocated salaries and other compensation costs of
approximately $1,334,000 (2021 - $1,172,000).

- 12-
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JEWISH NATIONAL FUND OF CANADA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

14.

15.

Commitments

The minimum rentals payable under long-term operating leases, exclusive of certain operating
costs for which the organization is responsible, are approximately as follows:

2023 $ 247,000
2024 232,000
2025 223,000
2026 146,000

%> 848,000

@

Financial instruments @
Interest rate risk @

The organization is exposed to changes in inter tes, which could adversely impact expected
retums from the organization's investments hejd by ihird party and State of lsrael bonds.
Market risk

fluctuate because of changes in marke{\prices. The organization is exposed to market risk
because of iis invesiments held by third and State of Israel bonds.

e

@@

Market risk is the risk that the fair vagwor future cash flows of a financial instrument will

- 48 -
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